
 

 

 
Date of issue: 16th August 2017  

 
  

MEETING: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors Parmar (Chair), Davis and Strutton) 
  
DATE AND TIME: THURSDAY, 24TH AUGUST, 2017 AT 10.00 AM 
  
VENUE: VENUS SUITE 2, ST MARTINS PLACE, 51 BATH 

ROAD, SLOUGH, BERKSHIRE, SL1 3UF 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

SHABANA KAUSER  
 
01753 787503 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 
 

ROGER PARKIN 
Interim Chief Executive 

 

AGENDA 

 
PART I 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
  

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in 
any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare 
that interest and, having regard to the circumstances 
described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have 
a declarable interest. All Members making a declaration will 
be required to complete a Declaration of Interests at 
Meetings form detailing the nature of their interest. 

 
2.   Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - 

To Note 
 

1 - 2  

 LICENSING ACT 2003 ISSUES 
 

This ‘Licensing Act 2003’ Sub-Committee is convening under the Licensing Act 2003 to hear and decide 
matters arising under that Act and under the Gambling Act 2005. Such matters may include the sale by retail 
of alcohol; the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club; the 
provision of regulated entertainment; and the provision of late night refreshment. 

 
3.   Temporary Event Notice - The Lounge,  

21 London Road, Slough 
 

3 - 60 Upton 

 
   

 Press and Public  
   

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings.  Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of 
a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or 
recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been 
discussed with the Democratic Services Officer. 

 



PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - GUIDANCE 

 
The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and 
this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent 
the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also 
a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be 
biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is 
especially so in “quasi judicial” decisions in planning and licensing committees. 
This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members 
may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct. 
 
Predisposition 
 
Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and 
may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will 
include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member 
ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the 
other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting 
documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an “open 
mind”. 
 
Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 
will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” 
a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to 
a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than 
indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is 
important that advice is sought where this may be the case. 
 
Pre-determination / Bias  
 
Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. 
Predetermination means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made 
his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence.  
Bias can also arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well as their state of 
mind.  The Code of Conduct’s requirement to declare interests and withdraw from 
meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning 
application.  However, members may also consider that a “non-pecuniary interest” 
under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: 
“whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would 
conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’.  A fair minded 
observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think 
that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek 
advice. 
 
This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. 
Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring 
Officer. 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
24th August 2017 

  

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

OBJECTION NOTICES TO A STANDARD 
TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE (TEN) 

 
MRS PARAMJIT KAUR DHESI 

for  
‘THE LOUNGE’, 21 LONDON ROAD, LANGLEY, 

SL3 7RL 
 

Objection Notices served by 
 

NATALIE WORLEY – SENIOR ENFORCEMENT 
OFFICER (EHO) for SLOUGH BROUGH 
COUNCIL , and  
 
SERGEANT WHITE, THAMES VALLEY POLICE 
 

‘Relevant Persons’ under the Licensing Act 
2003 

 

 
1. CURRENT POSITION 
 

The Premises User, Mrs Paramjit Kaur Dhesi has submitted a Temporary Event 
Notice (TEN) for ‘The Lounge’, 21 London Road, Langley, Slough, SL3 7RL for 
the provision of the Licensable Activities and times as follows; 

 

• The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption On and OFF the premises 

• The provision of regulated entertainment 

• The provision of late night refreshment 
 
On Sunday 27th August 2017 between 00.00 and 06.00 am. 
 
The nature of the event is to air to the public a boxing sporting event.  

 
       A copy of the Temporary Event Notice is attached at Appendix A. 
 
2.     OBJECTION NOTICE 
 
2.1 Objection notices have been served by a Natalie Worley, Senior Enforcement 

Officer (EHO) for Slough Borough Council and Sergeant White on behalf of the 
Chief Officer of Police of Thames Valley Police both ‘Relevant Persons’ under 
the Licensing Act 2003, as amended by the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 3



2.2 In accordance with the 2003 Act and associated regulations a copy of the 
objection notices have been served on the Licensing Authority, other ‘Relevant 
Persons’ and the Premises User. 

 
2.2.1 The full Objection Notice served by Natalie Worley (EHO) attached at 

Appendix B has been served on the grounds of The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance and can be summarised as follows: 

 
2.2.2   The Enforcement team are currently investigating 2 complaints of noise 

emanating from the licensed premises, which relate to loud amplified music 
and noise from persons attending the venue. A statutory nuisance abatement 
notice was served on 17th May 2017 on Mrs Dhesi, the premises licence 
holder, and Mr Taranjit Singh Dhanowalia, the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) on grounds of nuisance by noise arising from ‘loud amplified 
music’, requiring them to ensure that amplified music does not cause a 
nuisance to nearby residents . Since the service of the noise abatement 
notices, a further noise complaint has been received. 

 
2.2.3 The full Objection Notice served by Sergeant White attached at Appendix C 
         has been served on the grounds of The Prevention of Crime and Disorder,  
         Public Safety and the Prevention of Public Nuisance and can be 
         summarised as follows: 
 
2.2.4 A number of visits and inspections by the Police, Licensing Officers and 
         Environmental Health Officers have been conducted at the premises both as 
         normal inspections and as resulting from complaints being made by local 

residents. The complaints being made relate to loud and excessive noise 
arising from music and patrons at the premises; allegations of possible drug 
use; anti-social behaviour; an obstructed fire exit;  failure to close the beer 
garden and the premises at the required times at night; and the DPS Mr 
Dhanowalia being un-co-operative and obstructive towards the Police and 
Council officers. 

 
3.     THE PREMISES 
 
3.1 The Premises subject for the use of the TEN has a Premises Licence number 

PL0051 in existence. A copy of the current Premises Licence is attached at 
Appendix D. 

 
4.     OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 
4.1 There are various options available to the Licensing Sub Committee which are 

as follows: 
 
a)      Standard TEN  
 

• If the Relevant Persons’ objections are not considered to merit issuing a 
Counter-Notice or the imposition of licensing conditions, the TEN will be 
deemed as in order and the event will proceed. 

• Written notice must be given to the Premises User and all Relevant Persons to 
that effect. 

Page 4



• The Relevant Person serving the Objection Notice may appeal against the 
decision to the Magistrates Court with 21 days commencing on the day the 
Licensing Authority notified them of the decision.  

• An appeal may not be brought later than 5 working days before the first day of 
the event period specified. 

 
b)      Standard TEN - Counter Notice Served. 

 

• Having regard to the Objection Notices and to any relevant evidence and 
representations at the hearing, the Licensing Sub Committee must issue a 
Counter Notice if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of a licensing 
objective. 

• A copy of the Counter Notice must be served on the Premises User and all 
Relevant Persons. 

• The Premises User may appeal against the decision to the Magistrates Court 
with 21 days commencing on the day the Licensing Authority served the 
Counter Notice.  

• An appeal may not be brought later than 5 working days before the first day of 
the event period specified. 

 
c)       Standard TEN – imposing existing licence conditions thought 

appropriate and Counter Notice NOT Served. 
 

The Licensing Authority may impose one or more of the existing licence 
conditions on a Standard TEN, where: 

 

• A Relevant Person has given an Objection Notice in respect of the Standard 
TEN; 

• The Objection Notice has not been withdrawn; 

• The Licensing Authority (following a hearing) has not given a Counter Notice;  

• The conditions are already imposed on a Premises Licence or Club Premises 
Certificate in respect of part or all of the same premises that the TEN applies 
to;  

• The Licensing Authority considers it appropriate to impose those conditions on 
the Standard TEN for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives; and  

• The conditions would not be inconsistent with carrying out the Licensable 
Activities under the TEN.  

       
Where the Licensing Authority has imposed conditions on the Standard TEN 
in accordance with the above criteria, it MUST: 

 

• Give the Premises User a formal Notice of the decision 

• The Notice must be accompanied by a separate ‘Statement of Conditions’ 
which sets out the conditions imposed on the Standard TEN, and 

• Serve a copy of the Notice and the Statement of Conditions on all Relevant 
Persons. 

• The Notice and Statement of Conditions must be given no later than 24 hours 
before the beginning of the event. 

• The Premises User may appeal against the decision to the Magistrates Court 
with 21 days commencing on the day the Licensing Authority served the 
Counter Notice.  

Page 5



• An appeal may not be brought later than 5 working days before the first day of 
the event period specified. 

 
NB: Conditions cannot be imposed on a TEN where the ‘Premises’ does not 
already have the benefit of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate. In 
such circumstances the Licensing Authority may only deem the TEN in order or 
issue a ‘Counter Notice’.  There is no power to devise ‘bespoke’ conditions for the 
event that are not already attached to a Premises Licence or Club Premises 
Certificate.  
 
There is a power for the objecting Relevant Persons to agree modifications to the 
Standard TEN with the Premises User, in return for withdrawing their objections, 
but this must be done before the hearing is held. 

 

5.      RELEVANT GUIDANCE AND POLICIES 

 
5.1 The Licensing Sub Committee must have regard to: 

 

• The Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by the Police Reform and Social 
   Responsibility Act 2011) 
 

• The Section 182 Guidance (revised April 2017) issued by the Secretary of State 
 

• The Slough Borough Council Statement of Licensing Principles (December 
2014 -2019) 

 
6.     APPENDICES 

 
Appendix A -    Temporary Event Notice  
 
Appendix B -    Objection Notice – Natalie Worley, Environmental Health  
      
Appendix C -    Objection Notice – Sergeant White, Thames Valley Police 
      
Appendix D -    Premises Licence PL0051 
 
Appendix E –   Home Office Guidance on Temporary Event Notices   
 
Contact Officer 
 
Michael Sims 
Licensing Manager 
Consumer Protection and Business Compliance Services 
01753 477387 
 

Page 6



APPENDIX A

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



APPENDIX B

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



APPENDIX C

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



***

Page 33



Page 34



*******

*******

*******

Page 35



Page 36



*******

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



APPENDIX D

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill - March 2011 

Temporary Event Notices  

What is a Temporary Event Notice? 

A Temporary Event Notice is a notification to the licensing authority that an 
individual intends to carry on licensable activities for a period not exceeding 
96 hours. 

What is the process for obtaining a Temporary Event Notice? 

A Temporary Event Notice must be sent to the licensing authority and the 
police at least ten working days in advance of a planned event. Only the 
police can object to a Temporary Event Notice on crime and disorder grounds. 
The police have two working days after the receipt of the Temporary Event 
Notice to object, and (unless the premises user agrees to modify the 
Temporary Event Notice) the licensing authority must hold a hearing to 
consider any objection that has been received. If the licensing authority 
decides that the objection is valid, it must issue a counter notice to the 
applicant at least 24 hours before the beginning of the event to prevent it 
going ahead. 

Recent changes to Temporary Event Notices 

On 19 July 2010 the Government amended the Licensing Act 2003 by a 
Legislative Reform Order (LRO) to extend the police objection period from 48 
hours to two working days. The new arrangements, which came into force in 
October 2010, ensure that the police always have two full days to object to a 
Temporary Event Notice, even when it is submitted at the weekend or over a 
Bank Holiday. Restrictions on the use of LROs meant that it was not possible 
to use this mechanism to make more wide-ranging changes. 

What are the key changes that will be made through the Bill? 

• We will extend the right to object to a Temporary Event Notice to the 
environmental health authority. 

• We will allow the police and environmental health officers to object to a 
Temporary Event Notice on the basis of all of the licensing objectives. 

• We will give the police and environmental health officers three working 
days to object to a Temporary Event Notice. 

• We will give licensing authorities discretion to apply existing licence 
conditions to a Temporary Event Notice if there are objections from the 
police or environmental health authority. 

APPENDIX E

Page 57



• We will allow late Temporary Event Notices (i.e. those submitted less 
than ten working days but at least 5 days before the beginning of the 
event), unless the police or environmental health officers object. 

• We will relax the statutory limits on the duration of a single temporary 
event from 96 hours to 168 hours, and on the total annual availability 
covered by a Temporary Event Notice in relation to a single premises 
from 15 days to 21 days. 

What is the justification for making these changes? 

We are making these changes in response to concerns expressed by our key 
partners including residents’ associations, the police, licensing authorities, 
arts and voluntary organisations and circuses.

Why has the maximum length of a temporary event been increased? 
Why was 96 hours insufficient? 

Touring theatres, circuses and voluntary groups told us that they were losing 
business and income by having to break for 24 hours half way through a week 
long event.  The new limit of 168 hours will allow these organisations to run 
events for a week without a break. 

Who will benefit from these proposals? 

• Residents - who will be given more protection from noise, crime and 
disorder and unsafe conditions at temporary events. 

• The environmental health authority which will be able to object to 
temporary events. 

• The police and environmental health authority - which will have longer 
to consider a Temporary Event Notice and place any objections. 

• Touring theatres, circuses and voluntary organisations which will gain 
extra business and income by being able to run events for a week 
without a break, 

• Anyone (but particularly voluntary organisations and circuses) - who 
will still be able to put on temporary events (subject to annual limits) if 
they miss the 10 day deadline.   

What are the main views of consultation respondents? 

There was a mixed response to these proposals with residents, the police and 
licensing authorities asking for greater restrictions on temporary events and 
the arts and third sector organisations requesting a relaxation of some of the 
current limits and controls.  Our proposals aim to strike a balance between 
these views by imposing stricter controls when a temporary event is notified  

Page 58



(e.g. to allow environmental health authorities to object and give them and the 
police more time to do so), but relaxing some of the limits and allowing a 
limited number of late Temporary Event Notices. 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - To Note
	3 Temporary Event Notice- The Lounge, 21 London Road, Slough
	Appendix A The Lounge event 27.08.17_Redacted(1)
	Appendix B- Redacted
	Appendix C-Redacted
	Appendix D- Redacted
	Appendix E- TENs Home Office Guidance


